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P-ROCEEDI-NGS
(9:36 a.m)

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Good norning, |adies and
gentlemen. The Board of Zoning Adjustnent's 10/22/2025
public hearing please cone to order. M nane is Fred
Hll, Chairman of the District of Colunbia Board of
Zoning Adjustnment. Joining ne today are Board Menbers
Carl Bl ake and Chairman Ant hony Hood. Today's neeting
and hearing agenda are available on the Ofice of
Zoning's website.

Pl ease be advised that this proceeding is
bei ng recorded by a court reporter and is al so webcast
|ive via WebEx and YouTube Live. The video of the
webcast will be available on the Ofice of Zoning's
website after today's hearing. Accordingly, everyone
who is listening on WebEx or by tel ephone will be nuted
during the hearing.

Al so, please be advised that we do not take
any public testinony at our decision neeting session.

If you're experiencing difficulty accessing WebEx or

wi th your telephone call-in, then please call our Z
hotline nunber at 202-727-5471 to receive WebEX | ogin
or call instructions.

At the concl usion of a decision neeting

session, | shall, in consultation with the Ofice of
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Zoni ng, determ ne whether a full or summary order may
be issued. A full order is required when the decision
It contains is adverse to a party, including an affected
ANC. A full order may al so be needed if the Board's
decision differs fromthe Ofice of Planning's
recommendation. Al though the Board favors the use of
summary orders whenever possible, an applicant may not
request the Board to issue such an order.

I n today's hearing session, everyone who is
| i stening on WebEx or by tel ephone wll be nmuted during
the hearing, and only persons that have signed up to
participate or testify will be unnmuted at the
appropriate tine.

Oral presentations should be [imted to a
summary of your nost inportant points. Wen you're
fini shed speaking, please nute your audio so that your
m crophone is no longer picking up sound or background
noi se. Once again, if you' re experiencing difficulty,
pl ease call the hotline nunber |isted on the screen.

Al'l persons planning to testify either in
favor or in opposition should have signed up in advance.

They will Dbe called by name to testify. |If this is
an appeal, only parties are allowed to testify. By
signing up to testify, all participants conpleted the
oath or affirmation as required by Subtitle Y, 408.7.
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Requests to enter evidence at the tinme of an
online virtual hearing, such as witten testinony or
addi tional supporting documents, other than Ilive video,
whi ch may not be presented as part of the testinony,
may be allowed pursuant to Subtitle Y 103.13, provided
that the person making the request to enter an exhibit
explain, (a) how the proposed exhibit is relevant, (b)
the good cause that justifies allowng the exhibit into
the record, including an explanation of why the
requester did not file the exhibit prior to the hearing
pursuant to Y 206, and how the proposed exhibit would
not unreasonably prejudice any parties. The order of
procedures for special exceptions and variances are
pursuant to Y 4009.

At the conclusion of each case, an individual
who was unable to testify because of technical issues
may file a request for leave to file a witten version
of the planned testinony to the record within 24 hours
follow ng the conclusion of public testinony of the
heari ng.

If additional witten testinony is accepted,
then parties will be allowed a reasonable tinme to respond
as determ ned by the Board. The Board will then make
Its decision at its next neeting session, but no earlier

than 48 hours after the hearing. Morreover, the Board
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may request additional specific information to conplete
the record.

The Board and staff will specify at the end
of the hearing exactly what is expected and the date
when persons nust submt the evidence to the Ofice of
Zoning. No other information shall be accepted by the
Boar d.

Finally, the District of Colunbia
Adm ni strative Procedures Act requires that a public
hearing on each case be held in the open before the
public. However, pursuant to 405(b) and 406 of that
Act, the Board may, consistent with its rules and
procedures and the Act, enter into closed neeting on
a case for purposes of seeking |legal counsel on a case
pursuant to D.C. Oficial Code Section 2-575(b)(4)
and/ or deliberate on a case pursuant to D.C. Oficial
Code 2-575(b)(13), but only after providi ng necessary
public notice, and in the case of an energency cl osed
nmeeting, after taking a roll call vote.

Madam Secretary, do we have any prelimnary
matters?

M5. MEHLERT: Good norning, everyone. Today
for the schedul e application Nunmber 21351 of Janes
Wl Iliams has been withdrawn. Al so, the Chairnman has

reviewed and granted waivers to allow late filings into
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t he applicable case records pursuant to Subtitle Y,
Section 206.7 and Section 103.13.

Any other late filings during the course of
today's |ive hearing should be presented before the
Board by the applicant, parties, or wtnesses after the
case is called. Any other pertinent matters will be
noted when the case is called.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay. Thank you. Good
mor ni ng, everybody. Sorry, ny allergies are killing
me today, so it's going to be -- I'mgoing to hopefully

get through it okay.

So let's see. The first -- we're going to
have a long day, | think, also just so everybody knows.
And we'll try to get through it as best we can.

Do you want to call our first itemof business,
Madam Secretary?

MS. MEHLERT: Yes. In the Board's neeting
session, first is Application Number 21157A of 3428 O
Street, LLC, special exception application pursuant to
Subtitle X, Section 901.2 for a special exception under
Subtitle U Section 254.14 to allow a corner store use
and pursuant to Subtitle X, Section 1002 for an area
variance fromthe |ocation requirements of Subtitle U,
Section 254.6(g). This is for a corner store use

operated as a prepared food shop on the first floor and
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basenment |evels of an existing two-story building with
residential use on the second floor. It's located in
the R-3/GI Zone at 3428 O Street Northwest, Square 1228,
Lot 76. And before the Board today is a notion for
reconsi deration and rehearing filed on Septenber 19th
by a party in opposition, Melinda Roth. The order
approving the application was issued on Septenber 9th.
Participating in that hearing and vote were Chairnman

Hill, Vice Chair Bl ake, Board Menber Smth, and Chairnan
Hood.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay, great. Thank you.
Well, it's appropriate that Chairman Hood is here for
this. So we've all had a chance to ook at this and
what |'ve been advised is that due to the fact there's
apparently an appeal at the Court of Appeals on this
order, so the order was issued Septenber 9th, 2025 and
due to the appeals under Y 700.4, we're not able to do
anything while there's a current appeal, so we're not
even going to be able to talk about this notion for
reconsideration. And it's not waivable apparently.
So I'mgoing to go ahead and if anyone has anything el se
to say, I'"'mjust going to make a notion to dismss this
motion for reconsideration because we're not able to
do it.

Not saying anything? Al right. |'mgoing
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to make a notion to dismss the notion for
reconsi deration for Application Nunber 21157A and ask
for a second. M. Bl ake?

You're on mute, M. Blake. | can't hear you.

Chai rman Hood, would you second ny notion?

ZC CHAIR HOOD:  I'Il second the notion.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay, now I'mjust waiting
to see what M. Bl ake -- when he gets online here.

MS. MEHLERT: Do you want ne to take the rol
call vote?

BZA CHAIR HILL: Yes, you can, but you can't
hear from M. Bl ake yet.

MS. MEHLERT: (kay.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: You can get it started, sure.

MS. MEHLERT: Please respond to the Chair's
nmotion to dismss.

Chairman HiIl?

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Vice Chair Bl ake?

BZA CHAIR HI LL: W can't hear you.

MS. MEHLERT: | can't hear you.

BZA CHAIR HILL: Do you want to stick your
t hunb up? ay. For the record, M. Bl ake has
I ndicated with a thunbs up that he approves the notion.

Chai r ran Hood?
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ZC CHAIR HOOD:  Yes.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay.

M5. MEHLERT: Staff would record the vote as
to 3to0to 2 to dismss the motion for reconsideration
in Application Number 21157 on the notion nade by
Chairman H ||l and seconded by Chairman Hood.

BZA CHAIR HILL: And again, for the record,
there was a technical issue with Vice Chair Blake's
m crophone, but he visually indicated his support.

Now we're going to wait still for M. BIake
NOW.

Ckay, M. Blake has indicated he'll need five
mnutes to fix his issues, so let's conme back in five
m nutes. Thank you.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter went
off the record at 9:45 a.m and resuned at 9:51 a.m)

BZA CHAIR HILL: Al right. Go ahead, Madam
Secretary, and call our next order of business.

MS. MEHLERT: (Okay, next in the Board's
meeting session is Application Nunber 20943-A of WCP
1207 H Street, LLC. This is a request pursuant to
Subtitle Y, Section 705.2 for a two-year tine extension
of the validity of the order in Application Nunber 20943
I ssued on Cctober 3rd, 2023. This is for a new six-story

detached building with 184 to 210 dwelling units, above
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ground floor retail, below grade parking, and penthouse.

It's located in the NMJ 7B/ H A Zone at 1208 H Street
Nort heast, Square 1004, Lot 342, and |I'll note that the
OP report was filed into the record yesterday in Exhibit
6.

BZA CHAIR H LL: Geat. Thank you. Let's
see. So | had a chance to reviewthe file and per Exhibit
5 the applicant's statenent as to why they believe they
needed this extension, | wll agree with what their
argunent is. | also understand, | appreciate the
breakdown that they've shown in terms of how nuch noney
they' ve al ready spent on this project in terns of the
$325,000 and also | will note giving great weight to
the OP report that | do appreciate the O fice of Planning
putting in the record for us and I'll be voting in favor
of this tine extension.

M. Bl ake, do you have anything you'd |ike
to add?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: M. Chair, the
record' s showi ng good cause. |'ll be supporting the
application's request for a two-year extension.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Thank you. Chairman Hood?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: | too, M. Chair, would agree
with both of you all's assessnment. | think what's been

presented warrants the request by the applicant. Thank

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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11
you.
BZA CHAIR HI LL: GCkay. Thank you. 1'Il nake
a notion to approve the time extension for Application
Nunber 20943A up until Cctober 3rd, 2027 and ask for

a second.

M. Bl ake?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Second.

BZA CHAIR HILL: The notion has been made and
seconded. Madane Secretary, we'll take a roll call

MS. MEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the Chair's
notion to approve the time extension.

Chairman HiIl?

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Vice Chair Bl ake?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Chai rman Hood?

ZC CHAI R HOOD:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Staff will record the vote as
3to 0to 2 to approve Application Nunber 20943A on the
nmoti on made by Chairman H Il and seconded by Vice Chair
Bl ake.

BZA CHAIR H LL: Geat. Thank you. Please
call our next case or next item

MS. MEHLERT: Next is an advanced party status
request in Application Number 21361 of Moshood d ayi nka,
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as amended. It's a self-certified application pursuant
to Subtitle X Section 901.2 for special exceptions under
Subtitle E Section 207.5 to allow the rear wall of a
sem -detached building to extend farther than 10 feet
beyond the farthest rear wall of any adjoining principal
residential building on any adjacent property under
Subtitle A Section 8201 fromthe side yard requirenments
of Subtitle E, Section 208.3 and under Subtitle U Section
320.2 to all ow the conversion of an existing residential
building to an apartnent house.

This is for a three-story rear addition to
an exi sting sem -detached building and conversion to
a four-unit apartnent house |ocated in the RF-1 zone
at 1253 Morse Street Northeast, Square 4069, Lot 0058.
And there are advanced requests for party status in
opposition from Natalie Martinez, Andrew Karay, and Dawn
Boutelle. And then I'Il also note that on October 20th,
the ANC submitted a request to postpone the hearing
schedul ed for next week on Cctober 29th, although | don't
believe it has been served to the applicant yet.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay. Thank you. Al
right, so l'mlooking to the Board right nowin terns
of this itemthat's before us. Per the regulations and
as people -- sorry -- that the applicants are show ng

that they have nore of an interest in the case than the

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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general public, I've always been a little bit differing
upon the approach in this party status in terns of

what ever the project mght happen to be as to whether
or not | think in ny opinion people have nore of an

I nterest than the general public.

In this particular case, there i s one person
who is two doors away | think fromthe project and anot her
person who is three doors away fromthe project. And
so really, to ne, what it kind of cones down to is how
this project is necessarily affecting themany different
t han anyone el se on that block or particularly in the
area. And I've got to say | was a little torn on both
of them However, because one of the people that have
shown interest in this project tried to have party status
on sonething el se and they were late, and even this
particular application for that person was a little bit
-- | think it was a day filed late or sonething Iike
that. But in this particular instance, | guess |'l]
go ahead -- or would vote, if the rest of the Board
follows me, to give party status to both parties and
| can explain what that neans after this vote if we end
up goi ng that way.

M. Blake, do you have anything you' d |ike
to add?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Thank you, M.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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Chair. |, too, struggled with this because neither
party is abutting the subject property, but they're both
w thin 200 feet and they both have denonstrated that
they wll be nore affected than the general public,
especi ally when you consider this is a 20-foot addition,
addi ng 10 additional feet beyond the 10-foot rule and
this is a second such conversion in the neighborhood.
The 1251 next door also went through a simlar
conversion, as you nmentioned, and one of the persons
here asking for party status had attenpted to be on that.
That is actually I think nuch closer to that property.
And |I'mal so noting that there has been no
i ssue fromthe applicant with the granting of party
status, for either of these parties. So for that
reason, |'mconfortable granting party status to both.
BZA CHAIR HI LL: Thank you. Chairnman Hood.
ZC CHAIR HOCD: | too, M. Chair, would be
confortable. | knowit's sonetinmes a struggle trying
to figure things out, and are they nore aggrieved than
the general public. | struggle with that as well, but
| think the proximty, as Vice Chair Bl ake has nenti oned,
al so adds to ny support. So | would not have any issues
with granting both of themparty status.
BZA CHAIR H LL: Thank you. Al right, now

|'"mgoing to make a notion to grant party status to

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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Natalie Martinez and Andrew Karay, as well as Dawn
Boutell e, and ask for a second.

M. Bl ake?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Second.

BZA CHAIR HILL: The notion has been nmade and
seconded.

Madam Secretary, can we take a roll call?

MS. MEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the Chair's
motion to grant party status in opposition to Natalie
Martinez and Andrew Karay and Dawn Boutel |l e.

Chairman H || ?

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Vice Chair Bl ake?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Chai rman Hood?

ZC CHAI R HOOD:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Staff would record the vote as
3to0to2togrant party status in Application Nunber
21361 on the notion nmade by Chairman H Il and seconded
by Vice Chair Bl ake.

BZA CHAIR HILL: kay, great. Thanks. Now
In terms of the postponenent, | mean again, as the
Secretary just nentioned, | don't know if even the
parties were served the postponenent or not yet, the

request. | read the postponenent request and it seens

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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as though the ANC is not clear on sone of the issues
concerning the project and then they offered up sone

I deas as to how they mght have nore time to | ook at
the project. However, sone of the things that they were
saying was going to push the project -- or I'msorry,
push the hearing out to maybe February and so that seens
alittle bit -- what's the word? Anyway, | don't think
that's going to be very effective. And so | think what
we should do is go ahead and have the hearing next week,
then the ANC can al so participate and al so we can get
more of the ANC s questions answered at that tine and
then after the hearing determ ne whether or not we need
to postpone for alittle bit of time for the ANC to | ook
at that a little bit nore and then vote accordingly.

So those are ny thoughts. M. Blake, do you
have any thoughts?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: M. Chair, |I'm
confortabl e supporting that, your |ogic and reasoning
there. It would be nice to have a full report fromthe
ANC having nmet and convened prior to the neeting, but
| think that would be -- as long as they were represented
at the nmeeting, we can get sone feedback fromthem
| appreciate that. So I'mconfortable with that.

BZA CHAIR H LL: Thank you. Chairman Hood?

ZC CHAIR HOOD: Thank you, M. Chairman. |I'm
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confortable with -- even though | won't be on this case
next week, |'mgoing to speak for Conm ssioner Wi ght.
|'mconfortable noving it to -- | mean to hearing it

next week in the format that you have nentioned.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay, great. Thanks. M.
Young, is the two party status people here? Can you
bring that in here? Can you bring themin, please?

MR YOUNG Do you have the nanes of the two
peopl e?

BZA CHAIR HILL: Yes, Natalie Mrtinez and
Andrew Karay woul d be one and then the other one woul d
be Dawn Boutelle.

MR KARAY: Hello, Conm ssioners, can you
hear ne?

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Yes, who just spoke?

MR KARAY: Andrew Karay.

BZA CHAIR H LL: Geat. Gkay. M. Karay,
coul d you just introduce yourself for the record,

pl ease?

MR KARAY: Yes, of course. Hi, good norning,

Chai rperson, nmenbers of the Board. M nane is Andrew
Karay, me and ny wife, Natalie Martinez, we own 1257
Morse Street, Northeast.

BZA CHAIR H LL: I'msorry, | didn't nmean to

cut you off. That's all the information | needed.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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Thank you, M. Karay.

Ms. Boutelle, can you hear me?

MS. BOUTELLE: Yes, | can. Hi, nenbers of the
Board. M nane is Dawn Boutelle and I ama resident
at 1247 Morse Street.

BZA CHAIR HILL: kay, great. Thanks. So
just to let you guys know, | just want to bring you in,
so what happens when you get party status is the
applicant wll cone in and they will go ahead and give
their case as to why they believe they're neeting the
criteria for us to grant the relief that's being
requested. And then the party status people get a
chance to give their case and they get about the sane
amount of tinme as the applicant.

So if you guys can work together and present
together, that would be great. O if you want to present
separately, that's fine, but just try not to repeat
everything, but at the same tine, you guys aren't |and
use people | would assume and so however we get through
this is how we get through this. But | just want to
| et you know that's kind of the format.

And then what happens next is the Ofice of
Planning will give us their report and then we cone back
and have questions fromall the parties. And then we

al so see if there's any people out in the public that

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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have anything they'd like to say. Then the applicant
has an opportunity to ask questions of the party status
peopl e and the party status people have questions to
ask of the applicant, and also the party status people
have questions to ask the Ofice of Planning and then
afterwards we each give a small, little conclusion and
then the Board during the tine is obviously trying to
figure out what the Board thinks of it. So | just want
to let you guys know how t he process works.

Do either of you have any questions?

MS5. BOUTELLE: H, this is Dawn. If we have
any pictures or kind of anything that we want to present,
|'massumng we work with your office to send themin
ahead of tinme?

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Yes, Madam Secretary? Can
you advi se that question?

MS. MEHLERT: Can you repeat the question,
it cut out for a second?

MS. BOUTELLE: Yes, sure. |f we have any
pictures or any docunentation that we would like to
present to the Board, | guess we coordinate and send
that in to your office ahead of tine?

MS. MEHLERT: Yes, yes. You can submt that
to the record either through the IZI'S portal or through

bzasubm ssi ons@ic. gov.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

19

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N O o B~ W N e

N N N T T N R e T = S N e = I e i
o A W N b O ©O 00O N OO 0o W N B+ O

20

MS. BOUTELLE: Okay, great. Thank you so
much.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Thanks and if you can, M.
Boutell e, the sooner you get that in the better because
what needs to happen is the applicant needs to have an
opportunity to take a | ook at whatever it is that you
submt so that everyone is on the same page.

MS. BOUTELLE: Thank you for that advice.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Ckay, great. Al right,
then we will see you guys next week.

MS. BOUTELLE: Sounds good. Thank you so
much.

BZA CHAIR HI LL: Thank you. Ckay, all right.

Let's see, you may call our first case | believe, Madam

Secretary.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter went

off the record at 10:05 a.m)
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CERTI FI CATE

This is to certify that the foregoing transcript was
duly recorded and accurately transcribed under mny
direction; further, that said transcript is a true and
accurate record of the proceedings; and that | am neither
counsel for, related to, nor enployed by any of the
parties to this action in which this matter was taken;
and further that I amnot a relative nor an enpl oyee

of any of the parties nor counsel enployed by the
parties, and | amnot financially or otherw se

interested in the outconme of the action.

Br andon Pat er son
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